
 

 

Appendix 1 - Site Plan 

 

 

  



 

 

Appendix 2 – Mapping: Niagara Escarpment Plan 

 

  



 

 

Appendix 3 – Mapping: Niagara Peninsula 

Conservation Authority 

 

  



 

 

Appendix 4 – Google Map Captures 
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Via Email Only 

October 5, 2023 

File: D.09.08.NEC-23-0040 
 
Ms. Cheryl Tansony 
Senior Planner 
Niagara Escapement Commission 
232 Guelph St. 
Georgetown, ON L7G 4B1 

Dear Ms. Tansony: 

 Re: Regional and Provincial Comments 
 NEC Development Permit Application  

NEC File: N/C/2023-2024/194  
Applicant/Owner: Henry of Pelham (c/o Matthew Speck) 

 1469 Pelham Road 
 City of St. Catharines 

 
Regional Growth Strategy and Economic Development staff has reviewed the circulated 
Niagara Escarpment Commission (“NEC”) Development Permit Application for 1469 
Pelham Road in the City of St. Catharines (“subject property”). 

The applicant is proposing to change the surface of a 9,290.3 sq m (100,000 sq ft) 
existing gravel parking area to asphalt, on an existing 20.8 ha (51.39 ac) lot that 
supports a winery, agricultural uses, and private servicing. 

 
The following comments are provided from a Provincial and Regional perspective to 
assist the NEC in its consideration of this application.  

Provincial and Regional Policies 

According to the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 (“PPS”), the subject property is 
located within the Prime Agricultural Area, and more specifically within the Specialty 
Crop Area. Under the Greenbelt Plan, 2017, the subject property is identified as NEC 
Designation Area where the Niagara Escarpment Plan, 2020 (“NEP”) policies apply. 
Under the NEP, the subject property is designated as Escarpment Protection Area. 
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Under the Niagara Official Plan, 2022 (“NOP”) the property is designated as Specialty 
Crop Area. NOP Policy 4.1.2.3 permits a full range of agricultural uses, agriculture-
related uses and on-farm diversified uses in the specialty crop area. In addition, Policy 
4.1.2.2 states that all existing uses lawfully used for such purpose prior to December 16, 
2004, are permitted within specialty crop areas.  
 
The proposed application does not conflict with the PPS and conforms to Provincial and 
Regional plans. As such, the Region offers no objection to the application. 
 

Archaeological Resources 
 
The subject property is located within the mapped Area of Archaeological Potential, as 
identified in Schedule ‘K’ of the NOP. According to the PPS and NOP Policy 6.4.2.1, 
development shall not be permitted within areas of archaeological potential unless 
significant archaeological resources have been conserved. 
 
NOP Policy 6.4.2.6 requires a Stage 1 Archaeological Assessment prepared by a 
licensed archaeologist, as well as a Stage 2 Assessment, where required, to support 
the applications for development or site alteration within areas of archaeological 
potential. However, given that the new asphalt surface is limited to the area of the 
existing gravel parking area, and on the understanding that there is no deep disturbance 
proposed, an archaeological assessment is not warranted.  
 
Regional staff recommends the inclusion of the following standard archaeological 
clauses in the development permit relating to deeply buried archaeological materials 
that may be encountered during grading and construction activities, as per the NEC’s 
standard practice be included in the Development Permit: 

Should deeply buried archaeological remains/resources be found during 

construction activities, all activities impacting archaeological resources must 

cease immediately, and the proponent must notify the Archaeology 

Programs Unit of the Ministry of Citizenship and Multiculturalism (“MCM”) 

(416-212-8886) and contact a licensed archaeologist to carry out an 

archaeological assessment in accordance with the Ontario Heritage Act and 

the Standards and Guidelines for Consultant Archaeologists.  

In the event that human remains are encountered during construction, all activities 

must cease immediately and the local police as well as the Cemeteries Regulation 

Unit of the Ministry of Government and Consumer Services (416-326-8800) must be 

contacted. In situations where human remains are associated with archaeological 









 

 

Agency 3 Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority 
 

From: Meghan Birbeck <mbirbeck@npca.ca>  

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 11:51 AM 

To: Alexander, Elizabeth (She/Her) (MNRF) <Elizabeth.Alexander@ontario.ca> 

Cc: Adair, Kendra (MNRF) <Kendra.Adair@ontario.ca> 

Subject: NPCA comments regarding Niagara Escarpment Commission request for 

comments for file 24-194, 1469 Pelham Road, St. Catharines 

CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless 

you recognize the sender. 

Good afternoon Elizabeth and Kendra,  

Thank you for sending the NPCA the NEC material for 1469 Pelham Rd.  

Please note that current O. Reg. 41/24 notes that the following works are except from 
NPCA comments: 

- the maintenance or repair of a driveway or private lane that is outside of a wetland 
or maintenance or repair of a public road, provided that the driveway or road is not 
extended or widened and the elevation, bedding materials and existing culverts are 
not altered. 

The provided materials notes that the following is proposed: 
- To change the surface of a ± 9,290.3 sq m (100,000 sq ft) existing gravel parking area 

to asphalt, on an existing 20.8 ha (51.39 ac) lot that supports a winery, agricultural 
uses, and private servicing. 

With the provided materials that have been circulated the NPCA has no comments for the 
NEC file and will not require a review fee.  

Best,  

Meghan  

 

Meghan Birbeck (MS) 
Watershed Planner  
Niagara Peninsula Conservation Authority (NPCA) 
3350 Merrittville Highway, Unit 9, Thorold, Ontario L2V 4Y6 
905.788.3135 Ext 278 
www.npca.ca  
mbirbeck@npca.ca 
 

 




